ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVMM TTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS
April 2, 2004
7:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve M ke Hawker, Chair
Representati ve Bruce Weyhrauch, Vice Chair
Representative Vic Kohring

Representati ve Dan Ogg

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg

Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s
Representative Peggy W1 son

Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representative Carl Mses

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 538

"An Act relating to taxes on cigarettes and tobacco products;
relating to tax stanps on cigarettes; relating to forfeiture of

cigarettes and of property used in t he manuf act ur e,
transportation, or sale of wunstanped cigarettes; relating to
licenses and licensees wunder the Cigarette Tax Act; and

providing for an effective date."”
- MOVED CSHB 538(W&M OUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 537

"An Act relating to the levy, collection, and adm nistration of
sales and use taxes on tourism services; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 538
SHORT TI TLE: TOBACCO TAX; LI CENSI NG PENALTI ES

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -1- April 2, 2004



SPONSCR(S): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

03/ 18/ 04 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 18/ 04 (H) WM L&C, FIN

03/ 24/ 04 (H) WM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
03/ 24/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 24/ 04 (H) M NUTE( &M

03/ 26/ 04 (H) W&M AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
03/ 26/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 26/ 04 (H) M NUTE( &M

03/ 31/ 04 (H) W&M AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
03/ 31/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 31/ 04 (H) M NUTE( &M

04/ 02/ 04 (H) W&M AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
BILL: HB 537

SHORT TI TLE: TOURI SM SALES AND USE TAXES
SPONSCR(S) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

03/ 18/ 04 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

03/ 18/ 04 (H WM L&C, FIN

03/ 24/ 04 (H VWM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

03/ 24/ 04 (H <Bi |l Hearing Postponed to Fri. 3/26>
03/ 26/ 04 (H VWM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

03/ 26/ 04 (H) <Bi || Hearing Postponed to 3/31/04>
03/ 31/ 04 (H WM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

03/ 31/ 04 (H Heard & Held

03/ 31/ 04 (H M NUTE( W&M)

04/ 02/ 04 (H WM AT 7: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

W TNESS REG STER

JOHANNA BALES, Excise Audit Manager

Tax Division

Departnent of Revenue (DOR)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 538
and answer ed questi ons.

M CHAEL BARNHI LL, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Comrerci al / Fai r Busi ness Section

Civil Division

Department of Law (DQL)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 538
and answered questions.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 2- April 2, 2004



JOHN SHI VELY, Vice President

Government and Community Rel ations

Hol | and Anerica

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 537.

KAREN REG NA, President and Chief Executive Oficer

Al aska Hospital Alliance

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 537.

JACK REISS, Vice President for Operations

Aramark Parks & Resorts

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 537.

JOHN BI NKLEY Owner,

St ernwheel Riverboats; Eldorado Gold M ne

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 537.

STEVE FRANK
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 537.

GARY MENDI VI L, Busi ness Manager

Eagl ecrest Ski Area

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 537.

KEVI N BATTERS, General Manager

Hi | ton Hot el

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 537.

MARK HI CKEY

Anerican Cancer Society

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 538.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-21, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR M KE HAWKER cal | ed the House Special Commttee on Ways and
Means neeting to order at 7:05 a.m Represent ati ves Hawker,

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 3- April 2, 2004



Samuel s, Kohring, Wyhrauch, WIson, Guenberg, Mdses, and Ogg
were present at the call to order. Representati ve Rokeberg
arrived as the neeting was in progress. Represent ati ve Seaton
was al so i n attendance.

HB 538- TOBACCO TAX; LI CENSI NG PENALTI ES

Number 0145

CHAI R HAWKER announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 538, "An Act relating to taxes on cigarettes and
tobacco products; relating to tax stanps on cigarettes; relating
to forfeiture of cigarettes and of property wused in the
manuf acture, transportation, or sale of unstanped cigarettes;
relating to licenses and licensees under the Cigarette Tax Act;
and providing for an effective date.”

Nunmber 0316

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH noved to adopt the committee substitute
(CS) for HB 538, Version 23-GH2116\H, Kurtz, 4/1/04, as the
wor ki ng docunent. There being no objection, Version H was
before the committee.

CHAI R HAWKER expl ained that the |anguage regardi ng "possession

barter, sell, or exchange" has been cleaned up. He said there
al so was a "raising of the bar" on the nunber of cigarettes that
can be possessed. The | anguage specifically addressed Sections
18 & 19, raising 1,000 to 5,000. 1In the drafting process it was
identified that in Section 6 the 1,000 nunber needed to also be
changed to 5, 000. The anendnent directed the drafters to
i ncor porate conform ng anendnents as necessary.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if he should offer that idea as
an anendment .

CHAI R HAWKER asked Representative G uenberg to defer making that
anmendnent until later in the neeting.

Nunmber 0600

CHAI R HAWKER noved to adopt Amendnent 7, |abeled 23-GHR116\H. 1,
Kurtz, 4/1/041, which read:

Page 4, following |line 19:

Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 15. AS 43.50.550(b) is anended to read:

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -4- April 2, 2004



(b) A licensee who submts an application for
the purchase of stanps on a deferred-paynent basis

shall, as a condition of approval of the application
post a bond acceptable to the departnent in an anount
equal to

(1) 200 percent of the maxinmum dollar
anmount of allowed nonthly purchases under this section
; or

(2) 100 percent of the nmaxinum doll ar
anount of allowed nonthly purchases under this section
if the |icensee

(A hol ds a | i cense i ssued under
AS 43.50.010 for a physical location in this state;
and

(B) has been in full conpliance with the
provisions of this title and regul ati ons adopted under
this title during the preceding 60 nonths [AS A
CONDI TI ON OF APPROVAL OF THE APPLI CATI ON]

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.
Nunber 0620
REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH obj ect ed for discussion purposes.
Nunber 0645

JOHANNA BALES, Excise Audit Manager, Tax Division, Departnment of
Revenue (DOR), introduced herself.

CHAI R HAWKER asked Ms. Bal es to explain Arendnent 7.

MS. BALES replied that the anendnent offers two ways to qualify
for a deferred paynent plan. The first way is to post a bond in
the amount of 200 percent of the nonthly purchases of tax
stanps. The second way is to qualify is to post a bond for 100
percent [of nonthly purchases], and in order to qualify for
that, a physical location in the state is required. "You have
to be in full conpliance with the cigarette and tobacco products
exci se taxes and you had to have been a l|licensee and in full
conpliance for at |east the previous five years," she expl ai ned.
CHAI R HAWKER asked if 200 percent is current statute.

MS. BALES said that is correct.

CHAI R HAWKER asked if the proposal in the bill is to actually
doubl e the tobacco stanmp tax rate.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 5- April 2, 2004



MS. BALES said yes.

CHAIR HAWKER said that [ Arendnent 7] would provide an
alternative for Alaska resident vendors to cut in half the
amount of their bond. In other words, the bond anount would
stay at the current rate, he added.

M5. BALES said that would be correct.

CHAIR HAWKER ternmed it a fair remedy at this tine to alleviate
the concerns heard fromthe industry.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG referred to line 14 [of Amendnent 7]
and asked if DOR would like the discretion to allow the posting
of a bond wi thout the 60-nonth condition of approval.

MS. BALES replied no, that the person would be required to have
a five-year record. DOR feels that five years is appropriate,
she sai d.

CHAI R HAWKER asked if the five-year rule would | eave out anyone
who has been in business in the state, currently.

MS. BALES replied that it would not. Al'l of the taxpayers who
are currently posting a bond have significantly nore than five
years of history with DOR, she added.

Nunber 1022

REPRESENTATI VE  WEYHRAUCH said he thought M. El erding's
testinony from the previous hearing was especially good, and
yesterday he spoke with M. Roger Shattuck who issues bonds as a
busi ness. Representati ve Wyhrauch asked what the effect of
cappi ng the bond woul d be on a business that continues to grow.

CHAIR HAWKER rephrased the question to say, "As a business
continues to grow would their bonding requirenment continue to
grow even under this proposal ?"

M5. BALES replied yes, the bond requirenment would continue to
grow as the business grows, even under this proposal. "Everyone
needs to be nade aware that, basically, the departnent would be
floating one nonth of tax stanmps on credit to these |icensees.
As their business grows, their bond wll grow, and also their
credit being extended wll grow, as well," she noted.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 6- April 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said he is going to |look nore closely
at HB 538 as it goes through the House Labor and Comrerce
St andi ng Conmi ttee.

CHAIR HAWKER said that this provision would continue to nerit
effort, particularly by the House Labor and Comrerce Standing
Commttee, as they address the industry conplications.

Nunber 1159
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for <clarification on the wording
"all owed nonthly purchases.” He wondered if there is a certain

anount of stanps that is able to be purchased.

M5. BALES replied that DOR sets that anount after the bond is
revi enwed.

Nunber 1250

REPRESENTATI VE  WEYHRAUCH renoved his objection to adopting
[ Amendment 7] . There being no further objection, it was so
or der ed.

CHAI R HAWKER noted the arrival of Representative Rokeberg.
Nunmber 1400

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to adopt Anendnent 8, |abeled 23-
GH2116\D. 2, Kurtz, 3/30/04, [and changed to conformto Version H
and previously adopted anmendnents], which reads as foll ows:

Page 2, following |line 26:
Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 6. AS 43.50.090(d) is anended to read:

(d) The tax inposed under (a) of this section
does not apply to the first 100 cigarettes inported by
an individual for personal consunption during the
cal endar nonth or the first 600 cigarettes personally
transported into the state by an individual for that
i ndi vidual's personal consunption during the cal endar
nont h. "

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.
Page 3, following |line 28:

Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 12. AS 43.50.190(c) is anended to read:

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -7- April 2, 2004



an

(c) The tax inposed under (a) of this section
does not apply to the first 100 cigarettes inported by
i ndi vidual for personal consunption during the
cal endar nonth or the first 600 cigarettes personally
transported into the state by an individual for that

i ndi vidual's personal consunption during the cal endar

nont h. "

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.

Page 8,

following |ine 16:

Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 19. AS 43.50.650(a) is anmended to read:

(a) A person conmits the crime of msconduct
i nvol ving unstanped cigarettes or stanps in the second
degree if the person

(1) with reckless disregard that the

cigarettes are unstanped

f ewer
transacti on;

f ewer
sel | ;

or

or

(A sells or distributes at |east one but
than 5,000 unstanped cigarettes in a single

(B) owns or possesses at |east one but

than 5,000 unstanped cigarettes, wth intent to
[OR]

(O acquires, holds, transports, inports,

possesses at |east 601 [ONE] but fewer than 10, 000
unst anped cigarettes; or

(D) acquires, holds, transports, inports,

possesses at | east one but fewer than 601 unstanped

cigarettes that are not for personal consunption; or

(2) is not l|licensed under this chapter or

otherwi se authorized by the departnent to possess
stanps and possesses a stanp that is not affixed to a
cigarette package."”

Renunber the followi ng bill sections accordingly.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH obj ect ed for discussion purposes.

CHAI R HAWKER not ed that Amendnent 8 was drafted to the D version
of the bill
He asked

adj ustnents are correct.

Nunmber

1444

and has been changed to conform to the H version.
the sponsor to nmke sure that the conformng

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 8- April 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG suggested that Amendnent 8 should be a
conceptual amendnent to nmake sure that the conformng is
correct. He explained that wunder current Ilaw having five
packages of cigarettes, or 100 cigarettes, constitutes a crine
under Section 19, and it trips a requirenent to pay taxes on
cigarettes wused for personal consunption in excess of 5
packages, or 100 cigarettes. He said his concern is for
Al askans who travel to other states and purchase cigarettes. He
opi ned that these people should be able to inport for their own
personal consunption up to three cartons of cigarettes. He said
it does not in any way change the obligation to pay taxes, and
it is only intended to apply for transportation of cigarettes
into the state for personal consunption

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked how many cigarettes are in a
carton.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG replied that there are 200.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG referred to page 1 [Anendnent 8] new
Sections 6 and 12, and said that the underlined |anguage | ooks
| i ke a substitution for the language that is already there. He
suggested saying "to the first 600 cigarettes.” He said he does
not see any difference between the two phrases.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said the word "or" nmakes a distinction
between the two phrases. He referred to line 6 and said that
"transported into the state"” is the distinction.

REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG asked for clarification between
"personally transported" and "transported,” and for a reason why
the distinction is inportant.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG replied that it is a policy call about
whi ch | evel of personal possession or inportation is needed. He
said it would be sinpler to adopt the "600 cigarette rule.” The
intent is to make sure that the inportation for personally
consuned tobacco products does not trip any kind of crimnal or
ot her tax inpositions.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that there are a nunber of people
who do snoke and they have the right to do so. From a
prosecutor's viewpoint it's going to be nore difficult to
prosecute because the focus is on how the cigarette got |[to
Al aska], he opined. He suggested just naking the nunber 600.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 9- April 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG replied that having five packs as a
trigger is not realistic. He requested DOR s opinion

CHAI R HAWKER asked if DOR or DOL should address the issue. [The
commttee aide faxed copies of the anendnments to Ms. Bales.]

Nunber 2135

CHAIR HAWKER referred to [Section 19 of proposed Anmendnent 8]
and said that it |looks |like that section anends AS 43.50.650(a),
which is language that originally cane from a bill that was
passed | ast year requiring the use of tax stanps. He noted that
the amount of 1,000 has been raised to 5,000 in the previous

anendnent . He said that this is the section defining the crine
of m sconduct involving unstanped cigarettes at the |ow end.
This is not the felony issue, he stated. "W've got nore than

one, but less than, now, 5,000 unstanped cigarettes and we're in
fact selling these - reselling these - wthout stanps,” he said.
He asked Representative Rokeberg to explain [subparagraphs (O
and (D)].

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG replied that in this particular crimnal
m sconduct section, [subparagraph (C] on line 11 changes from
acquiring, holding, transporting, inporting, or possessing at
| east one cigarette and raises it up to 601, but fewer than
10, 000.

CHAI R HAWKER asked if it is conformng to the first page of the
anmendnent where the bar is raised.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG replied that it conforns to the ability
to possess, but it also raises the lowend trigger from one
cigarette to 601 cigarettes.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS noted that it appears in [subparagraph
(D] on page 2 [of Anendnent 8], that when "inports" is added,
the standard i s changed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG answer ed, "In terns of crim nal
prosecution ...."

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS said, "You owe the tax, but they can't do
anything to you if you don't pay it."

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG replied, "Right, for three cartons of
cigarettes, right."

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -10- April 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS said he agrees, but he is starting to

agree with Representative G uenberg. If a person buys 100
cigarettes on the Internet and is liable for the tax, but
there's absolutely no penalty ... [the |anguage] should either

be conforned or taken out of the second part, he opined.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG replied that he would not object to
that. It is a policy call that's up to the commttee, he added.
He said his concern in this section has to do with crimnality
and inportation.

Nunber 2521

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he can't wait to get into a
courtroom and ask, "Were did you get this cigarette?"

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if changing 1,000 to 5,000 was a
m stake originally and is now corrected.

CHAIR HAWKER said it was an anendnent made in a previous
commttee neeting.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS deferred to M. Bales, but suggested
elimnating "inports".

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG suggested talking to the attorney
general about it. He asked M. Barnhill for his opinion on
Section 19 [in Anendnent 8], which deals wth crimnal
m sconduct and the change in the anmount of cigarettes.

Nunber 2719

M CHAEL BARNHI LL, Assistant Attorney General, Commercial/Fair
Busi ness Section, Cvil Dvision, Departnent of Law (DQL),
replied that in the first two provisions of the anendnent there
IS a di stinction bet ween i mportation and per sonal

transportation, which is not nade on page 2 of the anmendnent.
He said it my be easier to do what Representative G uenberg
suggested and nake it a 601 threshold for everything.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if DOL would ever take up a case
dealing with one cigarette.

MR BARNHILL said it is an issue for the crimnal section to
answer, and he opined it is highly unlikely that the crimnal
section would spend any enforcenent tinme on three cartons of
cigarettes.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -11- April 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH suggested that it may open the door to
probabl e cause when the crine has been committee to open the
door to a search or sonme issue related to that person's
possession of cigarettes. He ternmed it a "seanless web" of
crimnal investigation prosecution.

CHAI R HAWKER asked Representative Rokeberg if the intention of
Amendnment 8 would be acconplished if, instead of adding the
addi tional |anguage, 100 is changed to 600 [on the first page]
and then on page 2, [subparagraph (D)] is not added, and the
change "601" is incorporated in [subparagraph (O].

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he would not object, subject to
DOR s opi nion on enforcenent.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH renoved his objection to the notion to
adopt Amendnent 8.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG mai ntai ned his objection. He said he
does not want to see people "entering into a web, seanless or
ot herwi se” for one cigarette.

MR. BARNHI LL suggested that if the |language on the first page is
changed to "600", the |anguage on the second page could be |eft
as it is. "What the legislative drafter is trying to do here is
di stingui sh between wunstanped cigarettes that are used for
personal consunption and unstanped cigarettes that are brought
in not for personal consunption,” he concl uded.

Number 3000
REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS noved to anend Amendnent 8 as foll ows:

Page 1, lines 4 and 15

Change "100" to "600"

Del ete the underlined | anguage on |ines 6-8
Del ete the underlined | anguage on lines 17-19

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG obj ect ed. He said he w shed to hear
from DOR before noving forward. He requested that M. Bales
comment on the anmendnment to Amendnent 8, and Amendnent 8 itself.
Nunber 3233

MS. BALES said that, in her opinion, the way that Representative
Rokeberg's Anendnent 8 reads nakes nore sense and causes better

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -12- April 2, 2004



protection of state revenues. |If the change is nmade from 100 to
600 [cigarettes], which is 30 packs, soneone who snbkes a pack
of cigarettes a day would be allowed to go on the Internet and
avoid the entire state tax, she said. That would negate the
whol e reason why the tax is being raised to begin with, which is
to make price effect consunption, she added.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS wi t hdrew hi s anendnment to Anendnent 8.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, | ooking at page 2 [of Anendnent 8],
which deals with crimnal prosecution, pointed out a problemin

current | aw. "They can prosecute sonebody, right now, for
havi ng one unstanped cigarette. That's a Cass A m sdeneanor.
That penalty seens to ne to be draconian,” he said. He said

[ Arendnent 8] says that if the cigarette is for sale, a person
coul d be prosecuted for one unstanped cigarette, but if it's for

personal consunption, the anount is 30 packs. He nai ntai ned
that a whole group of Al askans will be crimnalized if page 2 is
not anmended. He said DOR may not |ike page 1 of the anendnent,

but asked for comments regardi ng page 2.

M5. BALES said she understands what Representative G uenberg is
saying, and noted that DOR has no objections to [Anendnent 8].
She wondered if [subparagraph (D)] is even needed.

Nunber 3544

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to divide the question. He
cal l ed page 1, Anendnent 8a and page 2, Anendnent 8b.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG obj ect ed. He suggested it would be
easier to just anmend [ Anendnent 8].

CHAI R HAWKER asked Ms. Bales to restate her opinion of page 1 of
Amendnent 8 wi thout the proposed anendnent to it. "Is page one
of Conceptual Anmendnent 8 troubl esone to you?" he asked.

MS. BALES said [DOR] has no problem with it. She said this is
an area where [DOR s] enforcenment efforts are not focused.
Number 3700

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG w thdrew his notion to divide the
question and noved to anend Anendnent 8 as foll ows:

Page 2
Del et e new [ subpar agraph (D)]

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -13- April 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said it is sinpler for DOR if on I|ine
11, "[ONE]" is changed to "601".

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said there is a distinction between
[ subparagraphs (C) and (D)], and he noted that in (C) the "l oose
cigarette"” is gotten rid of. The actual possession of one isn't
a crimnal offense, but 601 is, and (D) is for personal
consunption, he expl ai ned.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he understands that, but what he
is saying is, "You're going to wind up with very small anmounts
of cigarettes potentially being crimnalized and naking the
whole focus of the crimnal prosecution, whether this one
cigarette, or a pack of cigarettes was for yourself or sonebody
else.” He said it would nake it much sinpler.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that the "loosey problent is a big
probl em and [subparagraph (A)] prohibits that. The (C |anguage
gets rid of the single <cigarette, but the (D) |I|anguage
i ncorporates it, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG replied that one is the sale
transaction (A), and (B) is if you own or possess at |east one,
but fewer than 5,000, wth intent to sell, which is very simlar
to (D). He asked why (D) is needed.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked for clarification from M.
Bar nhi || .

MR. BARNHILL replied that Representative G uenberg has a good

poi nt . Under (B) there has to be an intent to sell one, but
fewer than 5,000. The distinction is, under (B) there has to be
an intent to sell, and in order to prove intent under crim nal
law - that's a fairly high standard, he said. "Under (D) all

that has to be proved is that they don't have an intent to sell,
but they're not going to use it for personal consunption, so
that's potentially a | ower standard,” he said.

Nunber 4057

REPRESENTATI VE OGG focused on the word "possesses”, which he
noted is not on page 1 [of Amendnent 8]. He related:

And so what you're doing here is saying that people

who happen to just possess, they're not the ones who
brought the cigarettes into the state, they' re not the

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -14- April 2, 2004



ones who transported it into the state, they're not
the ones who inported it, they're the ones who just
happened to possess it. Their friend gave them the
pack. They're exenpt.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG agreed that what Representative Rokeberg is
suggesting covers it.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d, | ooking at the difference between
(D) and (B), the operative word is "possess" and argued that (B)
i's not needed.

Number 4314

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to anend Anmendnent 8 by deleting
[ subpar agraph (B)].

Nunber 4424
CHAI R HAVWKER r epeated the notion and stated his objection.
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG al so obj ect ed.

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Samuels and
G uenberg voted in favor of adopting the second anendnent to
Amendnent 8. Representati ves Wyhrauch, Kohring, Ogg, Mbses,
W son, Rokeberg, and Hawker voted against it. Therefore, the
notion failed by a vote of 2-7.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG wi t hdrew hi s obj ecti on.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH nentioned that there are a nunber of
people in the state who barter for cigarettes. He asked if that
woul d be considered the sanme kind of commercial transaction |ike
a sale subject to prosecution.

CHAIR HAWKER remarked that Ms. Bales was no |onger present to
answer questions.

Nunber 4456
CHAI R HAWKER asked if there were any further objections to the
notion to adopt Anendnent 8. There being no objection, it was

so ordered.

[ CHAI R HAWKER set aside HB 538.]

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -15- April 2, 2004



HB 537- TOURI SM SALES AND USE TAXES

TAPE 04-21, SIDE B
Number 4360

CHAI R HAWKER announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 537, "An Act relating to the levy, collection,
and adm nistration of sales and use taxes on tourism services;
and providing for an effective date.”

CHAI R HAWKER opened public testinony on HB 537. He said that
since the last neeting the conmttee has received the governor's
transmttal letter of March 16, 2004, and M. Shively's letter.

Nunber 4241

JOHN  SHI VELY, Vice President, Gover nient and Community
Rel ations, Holland Anerica, said that nost of his points are
made in his letter to the conmttee. He noted that the
governor's transmttal letter and [DOR] have indicated that $19
mllion will be raised [from the tourist tax] this fiscal year
and $49 mllion thereafter, and he said that has not seen those
cal cul ati ons. He said that is sonething the commttee and the
cruise industry need to see because, "W don't know how they
cal cul ated those anounts.™ He enphasized that it is inportant
for the conmttee to get answers [from DOR] to the questions he
raised in the letter.

MR. SHI VELY stated that sone of the problens raised are uniqgue
to the cruise industry because it sells about 90 percent of the
crui ses through travel agencies. "W don't know everything that
they collect. In addition, the way this bill is witten, if
they bundle services like airline fares from Chicago to Seattle
or Vancouver, and transfers and busses, all of that would be
part of the tax. So you're really taxing things that are taking
pl ace out of the state,” he said.

MR.  SHI VELY enphasized that Alaska is in a very conpetitive
position right now. The market share peaked in 1996 at about
9.5 percent and is under 8 percent, currently, due to
conpetition from the Caribbean, Eastern Canada, Mexico, Hawaii,
and Europe, he said. He noted that nmany people can now drive to

a cruise and price is an issue. He opined that this tax wll
make the cruise nore expensive, and that is not exclusively a
"cruise bill", as nmentioned earlier.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -16- April 2, 2004



CHAIR HAWKER thanked M. Shively and said he wuld stand
corrected if he did refer to it as a cruise bill, saying it
woul d af fect the whole travel industry in Al aska.

Number 4040

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, referring to the letter from M.
Shively, asked about the paragraph on page 4, after question 11,
whi ch says, "These questions are not neant to be all-inclusive
as we have not had enough tinme to thoroughly analyze the bill
He said that indicates that M. Shively may have further issues
with the bill. Representative Guenberg requested that M.
Shively send the remai nder of his concerns to the committee.

MR SHI VELY sai d he woul d.
Number 3939

KAREN REGQ NA, President and Chief Executive Oficer, Al aska
Hospital Alliance, which includes the Alaska Hotel and Lodging
Associ ation, and the Al aska Restaurant and Beverage Association

shared her organization's reasons for opposing HB 537. She said
she opposes targeted taxes on [the tourist industry] which are
not earmarked exclusively for tourism marketing. She noted that
the industry does contribute significantly to the state's
econony, and should be part of the solution to solving the

budget deficit. "To achieve that, we believe a broad-based
solution is necessary, rather than an approach that wunfairly
targets specific industries and businesses. We also believe

that a broad-based solution is achievable, in fact, to that end
we support the governor's POW [ percent of market value] plan,”
she rel at ed.

M5. REGQ NA spoke of the bill's utilization of a tax mechanism
that local regions rely on for tourism marketing, economc
devel opnent, and | ocal governnment. Tourism enhances the quality
of life in Alaska in many ways, both directly and indirectly,
and a bill such as this sends the wong nessage, she opined

She pointed out that the tax is targeting businesses that are
al ready paying local taxes. The hotel and |odging industry paid
nore than $46 million in tax to local nunicipalities in 2002,
she said. The cunulative inpact of an additional 5 percent tax
would bring the tax on hotels in many regions up to 13-17
per cent. She repeated her organization's opposition to HB 537
and urged the comittee to consider other nore broad-based
sol utions.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -17- April 2, 2004



Nunmber 3628

JACK REISS, Vice President for Operations, Aramark Parks &
Resorts, said his conpany operates the concessions and tours in
Denali National Park and Preserve, as well as two |odges in the
Denali corridor. He related that visitations to Denali are
approxi mately 80 percent cruise line related, and over the past
three years, visitation has been going down approximtely 5
percent a year. He said that fewer tourists are venturing into
the interior of Alaska for a variety of reasons. He stated his
belief that this tax targets the tourism industry and wll
continue to deter travelers fromgoing into interior Al aska. He

called it, "Shooting the goose that |ays the golden egg."
Denali only operates about 120 days a year and nost businesses
rely on cruise line tourism and this bill jeopardizes all

busi ness nanagenent in the Denali corridor, he concl uded.
Number 3430

JOHN BI NKLEY, Owner, Sternwheel R verboats; Eldorado Gold M ne
said his businesses enploy about 150 people. He said he has
been very supportive of Governor Mirkowski's drive to devel op
the resources in Al aska. Tourismis also a resource, he said
and he stated his opposition to HB 537 because of the effect

that it has on the devel opnent of this resource. He conpared
tourism to other resources that bring new dollars from outside
of the state into its econony. He urged the comrittee to not

pass this |egislation.

Nunber 3124

STEVE FRANK said that he is the owner of a small tourism
busi ness consisting of a hotel, restaurant, and RV park in
Fai r banks. He stated that he is alnost entirely dependant on
visitors to support his business and the 100 jobs created by his
busi ness. He opined that HB 537 would cost jobs because |ess
people wll come to his business, and it does not seem

appropriate to tax an industry that supports general governnent.
He stated his support for a nechanism to enhance the economc
devel opnent of tourism through SB 254, which is an industry

sel f-assessnment that would put noney back into tourism
mar ket i ng. A 5 percent tax, added to an 8 percent hotel tax,
woul d make for a 13 percent tax, which wll discourage people

from booking tours to Al aska, he said.

Nunber 2657

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 18- April 2, 2004



GARY MENDI VIL, Business Manager, Eaglecrest Ski Area, spoke
about his concerns with the definition section of HB 537. The
| anguage |eaves a nunber of things open to interpretation,
specifically in the definition of guided activities, which m ght
be determined to include ski and snowboard |essons or field
trips operated by local comunity groups or schools, he said.
He described the ski industry in Alaska as one destination
resort, Alyeska, six comunity ski areas, and four ski areas
| ocated on mlitary bases.

Number 2452

KEVI N BATTERS, General Manager, Hlton Hotel, in stating his
opposition to HB 537, said that his hotel relies on convention
and tour business for the mgjority of its business throughout
t he year. This tax will nake it extrenmely hard to continue to
run the business effectively, he said. If there is a decrease
in any of these areas, it will prevent Anchorage from becom ng a
year-round destination and it will decrease jobs, he opined.

CHAI R HAVWKER cl osed public testinony.
[ HB 537 was hel d over. ]

HB 538- TOBACCO TAX; LI CENSI NG PENALTI ES

Number 2305

CHAI R HAWKER announced the return to HOUSE BILL NO 538, "An Act
relating to taxes on cigarettes and tobacco products; relating
to tax stanps on cigarettes; relating to forfeiture of

cigarettes and of property used in t he manuf act ur e,
transportation, or sale of wunstanped cigarettes; relating to
licenses and |icensees wunder the G garette Tax Act; and

providing for an effective date."”
Number 2228

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to adopt Anendnent 9, |abeled 23-
GH2116\D. 3, Kurtz, 3/30/04, which read:

Page 3, following |line 28:
Insert a new bill section to read:
"* Sec. 11. AS 43.50.190 is anended by adding a
new subsection to read:
(d) A portion of the annual proceeds of the tax
| evied under (a) of this section equal to the tota

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -19- April 2, 2004



proceeds of the tax multiplied by the quotient of
seven divided by 62 shall be deposited into the
t obacco use education and cessation fund established
in AS 37.05.580. This deposit shall be in addition to
any sumns deposi ted into t he fund under
AS 37.05.580(a)."

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH obj ect ed for discussion purposes.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated his frustration over t he
all ocation of resources from the Master Settlenent Agreenent.
He said the intent of Anmendnent 9 is to provide sufficient
anounts of noney to fund the mninum anmount of tobacco use
education cessation as reconmended by the Centers for D sease
Control and Prevention (CDC), or approximately $8 mllion. He
enphasi zed that the state should provide funding to help those
peopl e who wish to stop snmoking, if the tax is inplenented. He
noted that historically there has been a shortfall in the area
of cessation education. When the Master Settlenment Agreenent
was created, the state received about $668 mllion over a period
of 25 years, 80 percent of which has been spent on

infrastructure in Al aska, leaving cessation education only
partly funded, he related. He nmaintained, "Snokers deserve
their fair share of the noney to help themquit.” It should be

the public policy of the state, he added.
Number 1731

CHAI R HAWKER asked if the intent of [Amendnent 9] is to direct
approximately $8 mllion into the tobacco education fund from
the proceeds that this tax woul d raise.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that is correct. The net anpunt of
t he appropriations would be that anount, he added.

CHAIR HAWKER said it would continue into the general fund as was
originally envisioned in the bill. The fiscal note proceeds of
the tax are about $35.3 million, and those proceeds would be
multiplied by a factor of seven and then divided by 62, he
calculated. He said that is about 11 percent or $4 mllion. He
asked what part of the calculation is m ssing.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said his understanding is that it is

about $3.4 nmillion against the current appropriation of $4.6
mllion, which would yield $8 mllion.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 20- April 2, 2004



CHAIR HAWKER said he stands corrected in his understanding of
the intent of Anmendnent 9. The intent is not to add $8 mllion
from this tax into the tobacco fund, but is to raise the
aggregat e annual contribution.

REPRESENTATI VE RCOKEBERG replied, yes, enough to yield the
m ni mum anmount of approximately $8 mllion.

CHAIR HAWKER asked if that could be done by diverting
approximately $4 mllion of the proceeds of this tax into the
t obacco cessation fund.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that the problem is how to
acconplish it in a bill that is not an appropriation bill

Number 1444

REPRESENTATI VE OGG asked for clarification of [AS 37.05.580(a)].
He wondered why a percentage isn't used in [Anendnent 9] instead
of the "quotient |anguage"

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said it is a good question and perhaps
the drafters mssed the intent of the anmendnent. He added that
it is not a appropriation bill. He said he is trying to set
public policy and would like nmore clarification of the amendnent
by M. Hickey [fromthe Anerican Cancer Society].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks it is a good anmendnent
and he suggested addi ng a conceptual intent section to it.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he agrees wth Representative
G uenberg that statutory intent |anguage should be incorporated
into the bill

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH suggested asking M. H ckey for input
on the intent of the anmendnent.

Nunmber 1017

MARK HI CKEY, Anerican Cancer Society, said he was asked by
Representati ve Rokeberg to help with an anendnent proposal to
fund the program but stated that his organization supports the
bill even without [Anmendnent 9].

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked what program M. Hickey is
referring to.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -21- April 2, 2004



VR. H CKEY replied, "The tobacco control program - the
cessation, education program- [it] is Representative Rokeberg's
intent is to fund that at a m ninmum recommended |evel of about
$8 mllion. The actual recomrended guidelines from the Centers
for Disease Control are about $8.3 mllion."

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if the quotient of 7/62 is found
sonewher e el se.

Number 0915

MR H CKEY said that it was how the drafters wote it. He
explained, "In law today you have the tobacco use education
cessation fund which was created three years ago, and the
statute referenced, | believe, is AS 37.05.580. Currently, 20
percent of the Master Settlenent paynent goes into that
annually.” He said it is not a dedicated fund, but is intended
to inplenment the program and the |egislature has been very good
at providing the noney for it. The anount right now, the annua
cash flow, is about $4.4 mllion a year. This proposal wll

take an additional amunt out of the general fund tax on
cigarettes and put it into that fund and the amount works out to
be about $4.2 mllion of additional noney based on DOR s own
estimtes, he explained. He related that the way it works is a
cigarette tax increase will generate about a $36 nillion tobacco
tax increase. There are two pieces to the tobacco tax increase,
$30 million from the cigarette part and the rest from other
tobacco products (OTP). One nmill generates about $600,000 in
revenue right now. Seven mlls would generate about $4.2
mllion. "You would take seven mlls, put it in this fund. At
your discretion you can then appropriate it on an annual basis.
And a dollar inpact right now, today, is adding another $4.2
mllion, so | would actually put $8.6 million, using today's
nunbers, into that fund," he concl uded.

REPRESENTATI VE VWEYHRAUCH asked if that is where the seven cane
from

MR. HI CKEY sai d yes.
REPRESENTATI VE VEYHRAUCH asked where 62 cane from
MR. H CKEY replied that 62 is what the new mll rate would be

with the dollar-a-pack increase. The mll rate right nowis 12,
he added.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -22- April 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if there is any reason why it
couldn't just be 11 percent or 11.4 percent and achi eve the sane
obj ecti ve.

Number 0644

MR, HI CKEY said, "I think you could go that way. The main piece
of this, and trying to find a way to neet Representative
Rokeberg's desire, was to take advantage of the fund you've
already set up, which is very clear as to what its purposes are
for, and make available, at least in the front, a certain anount
to get to the mninmum and then at your discretion you would be
able to elect to appropriate that for the cessation program™

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if this provision would only be
reasonably considered if the tobacco tax goes into effect, and
woul dn't be a stand-al one provision.

MR. HI CKEY said that is his understanding.

CHAIR HAWKER said that there are a couple of perils that the
commttee is facing. One is the dedication of funds issue, and
the other is a concern that this is not an appropriations bil
of itself. He asked Representative G uenberg for his opinion

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he sees three parts to that
sol ution: the intent of putting noney into the fund, the
drafting of the language in the text, and providing for a second
intent provision as to what the fund should or should not be
used for. He suggested addressing each of those issues
separately.

MR. HI CKEY addressed the last point and pointed out that
existing law enacted in 2000 and sponsored by Representative
Rokeberg, already deals wth the Departnent of Health and Socia

Services' duties. "It tracks the recomendation from the
coalition that I'"'m representing, as wel | as nat i onal
reconmendati ons, as to the pieces, counter marketing, cessation,
enforcement - it goes through a list - and the fund already in

pl ace nmakes a connection that the purpose of the fund is to
i npl enent that program” he explained. He said that the fund is
not viewed as a dedicated fund, but is a fund within the general
fund at the legislature's discretion whether, on an annual
basis, to follow what anobunts to intent.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -23- April 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that the conmttee pass
Amendnment 9 with the suggestion to Representative Rokeberg and
M. H ckey to "norph it" further.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG agr eed. He said he has drafted a
conceptual letter of intent to add to the bill, and he offered
to work further wth the wvarious parties to achieve nore
clarity. He said he is a nenber of the next committee of
referral

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if Representative Rokeberg would
offer [the letter of intent] before this commttee.

Number 0010

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG read the conceptual letter of intent
[which | ater became Conceptual Amendnent 11] as foll ows:

It is the intent of the |legislature to provide
aggregate funding to neet the mninmum anount of
tobacco control prograns recommended by the Centers
for Disease Control on tobacco taxes and the tobacco
use and cessation fund establishing AS 37.05.580.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG suggested [adopting Anmendnent 9] and
the letter of intent to be included in [HB 538].

TAPE 04-22, SIDE A

CHAl R HAWKER asked if the letter of intent should be added on to
Amendnment 9.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he wll offer it as a separate
amendnent .

CHAIR HAWKER clarified that the discussion is |eading toward
passi ng Amendnent 9, recognizing that it has sonme difficulties
but the intent is there, and then offering the intent |anguage
as a separate anendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he wants to have the intent
| anguage i ncluded within the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG renoved his objection to Anmendnent 9.

He suggested that the wording in the anendnent be changed to
| anguage i nstead of figures.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 24- April 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG replied that it can't be figures because
it is a noving target and it will be subject to appropriations.
He termed it a policy statenent.

CHAI R HAWKER noted that Representative G uenberg's objection is
mai nt ai ned only for discussion purposes.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she thinks that this particular tax
is very inmportant as a policy statenent because it is as nmuch a
soci al and health issue as an econom c issue.

Nunber 0211

REPRESENTATI VE OGG conmended Representative Rokeberg [for the
intent wording] because it gives purpose to the bill. Up unti
this concept was added, the bill had no purpose other than as a
revenue device, he opined. He said he is very supportive of
increasing a tobacco tax for the purpose of acconplishing
[tobacco cessation] education, and not as just a revenue device.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG renoved his objection to the notion to
adopt Anmendnent 9.

REPRESENTATI VE VWEYHRAUCH al so renoved hi s objection.

Nunber 0303

CHAIR HAWKER asked if there was any further objection to
adopting Anendnent 9. There being no objection, it was so
or der ed.

Nunber 0324

CHAI R HAWKER noved to adopt Anendnent 10, which read [origina
punct uation provided]:

Page 2, Line 30

Del ete [ 1, 000]

I nsert 5,000
REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS obj ected for discussion purposes.
CHAI R HAWKER expl ai ned that the amendnment further solidifies the
conformty throughout the docunent by raising the 1,000-
cigarette hurdle for various benchmarks to 5, 000.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS renoved his objection.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -25- April 2, 2004



CHAIR HAWKER asked if there was any further objection to the
notion to adopt Anendnent 10. There being no objection, it was
so ordered.

Nunber 0425

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to adopt Conceptual Anendnent 11,
whi ch read [original punctuation provided]:

It is the intent of the |legislature to provide
aggregate funding to neet the mninmum anount of
t obacco control prograns recommended by the Center for
Di sease Control from tobacco taxes and the tobacco use
and cessation fund establishing in AS 37.05. 580.

CHAI R HAWKER obj ected for di scussion purposes.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said it is the intent section of the
bill and he would like to have it as a conceptual anmendnent
added to the bill itself as a statenent of policy from the
| egi sl ature.

CHAI R HAWKER r enoved hi s objecti on.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH nentioned that it should say "neet"
i nstead of "nmet".

CHAI R HAWKER, hearing no further objections to the notion to
adopt Conceptual Amendnent 11, it was so ordered.

Nunber 0526

REPRESENTATI VE OGG offered [Conceptual Amendnent 12] stating
that the anmount of tax increase confornms to the intent of
[ Conceptual ] Amendnent 11.

CHAI R HAWKER asked for clarification.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG said that the increase in the tax should only
be enough to fund the anount stated in the intent |anguage,
which will decrease the total anount of tax raised.

CHAI R HAVWKER obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would appreciate first taking
up the anmendnents that he plans to offer.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 26- April 2, 2004



CHAI R HAWKER sai d [ Conceptual Anendnent 12] stands in order, but
he assured Representative Guenberg that [the commttee] wll
get to all of the anendnents. He repeated Conceptual Anendnent
12, which is to reduce the anmount of increnental tax inposed by
this legislation to the anmpbunt necessary to conply with the
i ntent | anguage j ust passed.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG said that is clear enough.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if the total anmount raised would be
no nore than $8 mllion and it would go to tobacco cessation and
there would be nothing left for the original purpose of the
bill.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG replied yes.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ect ed.

CHAI R HAWKER nuai ntained his objection. A roll call vote was

t aken. Representatives Kohring and Ogg voted in favor of the
notion to adopt Conceptual Amendnment 12. Represent ati ves
Weyhrauch, W I son, Sanuels, Rokeberg, G uenberg, and Hawker
voted against it. Therefore, the notion to adopt Conceptual

Amendment 12 failed by a vote of 2-6.
Number 0940

REPRESENTATI VE OGG responded that he w shed to reconsider and
wi t hdraw [ Conceptual Anmendnent 12].

CHAI R HAVWKER accepted Representative Ogg's wi sh to reconsider
and wi t hdraw Conceptual Anendnent 12.

Number 1000

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Anmendnent 12, |abeled
23-GH2116\H. 2, Kurtz, 4/1/04, which read:

Page 5, line 23:

Del ete "AS 43.50.500 - 43.50. 700"

Insert "AS 43.50.500 - 43.50.640 or 43.50.660 -
43. 50. 700"

Page 5, line 26:
Del ete "AS 43.50. 500 - 43.50. 700"

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -27- April 2, 2004



I nsert "AS 43.50.500 - 43.50.640 or 43.50.660 -
43. 50. 700"

Page 5, line 28 - 29:

Del ete "AS 43.50.500 - 43.50. 700"

Insert "AS 43.50.500 - 43.50.640 or 43.50.660 -
43. 50. 700"

Page 6, line 24 - 25:
Del ete "or 43.50. 650"

Page 7, line 22:
Del ete "or 43.50. 650"

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG explained that he had the drafter
technically conform the anendnent to Representative Sanuels

anendnent, which was to nake the forfeitures only apply in
fel ony cases. He checked wth Representative Sanuels to make
sure that he agreed with the anendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS said that was the intent of the origina
anmendnent .

CHAI R HAWKER obj ected for discussion purposes. He asked for M.
Barnhill's opinion of the amendnent.

MR. BARNHI LL said the anendnent is fine.

CHAIR HAWKER renoved his objection to the notion to adopt
Amendnent  12. There being no further objection, it was so
or der ed.

Number 1200

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Anmendnent 13, |abeled
23-GH2116\H. 3, Kurtz, 4/1/04, which read:

Page 7, line 26:
Del ete "shal I "
| nsert "may"

Page 7, line 28, follow ng "seized":

Insert "or to another nmunicipality affected by
the crime for which the property was forfeited. The
state shall notify all nunicipalities affected by the
crime of the forfeiture proceedi ng"

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 28- April 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE VWEYHRAUCH obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG explained that this anmendnent also

deals with the forfeiture provision of the bill. He said the
anendnent is about getting the property that is seized by the
state to a nunicipality. It requires that the property nust go

to a municipality.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if it could go to an unorgani zed
bor ough.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said yes, or they mght want to keep it
for the state if it is a valuable airplane needed for fish and
gane or sonething like that, he said. The second change is that
it makes it possible for the property to go to the nunicipality
it was seized in or to go to another nunicipality that was
affected by the particular crine, he explained. It also
requires the state to notify all of the relevant nunicipalities
of the forfeiture proceeding.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH renoved his objection. There being no
further objection, Amendnent 13 was adopt ed.

Number 1500

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Amendnent 14, which read
[original punctuation provided]:

Page 7, line 7: I nsert new subsection (f) and re-
| etter subsections accordingly:

(f) The court may allow the owner of property
that is subject to forfeiture under (a) of this
section to redeem the property by paying an anount to
be determ ned by the court to be the fair market val ue
of the property.

CHAI R HAWKER obj ected for di scussion purposes.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expl ai ned that what this amendnent does
is allow the owner of the property to put up the fair market
value in cash. It would save the state the cost of going
t hrough the auction process, he said.

Number 1553

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -29- April 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said this anendnent causes a few
conpl i cati ons. He asked if this neans it should be the first
right of refusal or first right of offer. He said there is an
apprai sal problem also, about what is fair market val ue.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that could be determned by the
court.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that this would be called a first
right of offer.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said it would be a commercia
appr ai sal .

CHAIR HAWKER renoved his objection to the notion to adopt

Amendnent 14, There being no further objection, it was so
or der ed.
Number 1670

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Amendnent 15, which read
[original punctuation provided]:

Page 6, line 28 to Page 7, line 19: Anend subsections
(e) and (f) as follows:

(e) The owner of property subject to forfeiture
under (a) of this section is entitled to relief from
the forfeiture in the nature of remssion of the
forfeiture if, in an action under (d) of this section
t he owner shows that the owner

(1) was not a party to the violation; and
(2) bhad no actual know edge or reasonable
cause to believe that the property was used or was to
be used in the violation of the law; AND
(3) HAD NO ACTUAL KNOW.EDGE OR REASONABLE
CAUSE TO BELIEVE THAT THE PERSON COW TTING THE
VI CLATI ON HAD
(A A CRIRMNAL RECORD FOR VICOLATING
TH S CHAPTER, OR
(B) COW TTED OTHER VI COLATIONS OF
TH S CHAPTER] .

(f) A person other than the owner hol ding, or the
assignee of, a lien, nortgage or conditional sales
contract on, or the right to possession to property
subject to forfeiture under (a) of this section is
entitled to relief from the forfeiture in the nature

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 30- April 2, 2004



of remssion of the forfeiture if in an action under
(d) of this section, the person shows that
(1) the person was not a party to the violation;
and
(2) had no actual know edge or reasonable
cause to believe that the property was used or was to
be used in the violation of the law; AND
(3) HAD NO ACTUAL KNOALEDGE OR REASONABLE
CAUSE TO BELIEVE THAT THE PERSON COW TTING THE
VI OLATI ON HAD
(AN A CRMNAL RECORD FOR VIOLATING
TH S CHAPTER, OR
(B) COW TTED OTHER VI OLATIONS OF THI'S
CHAPTER] .

CHAI R HAWKER obj ected for di scussion purposes.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG explained, "Right now it's an
affirmati ve defense to the relief, if the owner shows that
the owner wasn't a party to violation and had no actual
knowl edge or reasonable cause to believe that the property
was used to be used in the violation." "Nunber three is
the provision that caused ne sone problem" he added. The
guestion would be whether the person had a know edge of
whet her the perpetrator had a crimnal record for violating
the chapter or had ever commtted any other violations of
the chapter, he said. This is especially true for smaller
comunities, he opined. He said it seened to reach too far
and to not be fair, and that 1is why [Anendnent 15]
elimnates it. "You still have to show, to get out of it,
that you weren't a party to it and you had no know edge
that this was going to be used in any violation, and that's
t he essence of what ought to be shown,™ he concl uded.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked for input from DOL about the
anmendnent .

Number 1907

MR. BARNHILL said what this does is |lower the standard or
threshold for an innocent owner, or for an innocent owner
of a security interest in the property, to get rem ssion.
He said it is essentially a policy call.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS asked if the standard is being
| onered all that far.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -31- April 2, 2004



MR BARNHILL replied that it begs the question as to
whet her the person is just |ooking the other way.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if it is the maker's intent
to |l ower the threshol d.

Nunber 2115

Representative Gruenberg said no. He said he is trying to
address, particularly in small comunities where people may
have done sonmething in their youth long age, a situation
where a person has no possible reason to believe that the
car or airplane is being used illegally, but they do know
that their friend was convicted of sonething | ong ago.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH suggested that due to the nature
of the of fense an expungenent m ght be in order.

CHAI R HAWKER concurred with that idea. He noted that the
| anguage in [Armendnment 15] is not exactly |ike the |anguage
in the bill. He referred to [page 7, line 1, of the bill]
the words "did not have actual know edge"” as opposed to
"had no actual know edge"” [in Arendnent 15].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that should be taken care of
by the drafter.

CHAI R HAWKER asked if Representative Guenberg's intent is
to denonstrate changes to Version H [of HB 538], rather
than an attenpt to rewite the |anguage.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG replied absol utely.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG suggested that it be a conceptual
amendnent .

Nunber 2255

CHAIR HAWKER said it is now Conceptual Amendnent 15. He
asked if [paragraph (3)] should be elimnated "as further
establishing a bar to sonmeone being asked to forfeit their
property". He opined that it does seem like it is being
lowered to a |esser standard, by elimnating the |anguage
in [paragraph (3)] and he said he is troubled by that.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG replied that he is trying to
prevent an injustice and does not want to |ower the bar.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -32- April 2, 2004



He said, "In a small state |like Al aska, we know a | ot about
our neighbors - this isn't a big state - and that doesn't
mean you have any crimnal intent at all, or any intent to
violate the law. You just happen to know your nei ghbor."

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH agr eed.
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG sai d he supports the anmendnent.
REPRESENTATI VE W LSON mai nt ai ned her objection

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH stated that this is a conceptual
anmendnent now, and he suggested that Representati ve
G uenberg is not offering Anendnent 15 as witten

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG clarified that the anendnent
deletes lines 16-19 on page 7, and it is not conceptual.

Number 2518

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON inquired if there is anyway to "cone
hal f -way between those two." She said she likes both sides
of the issue, and does not want to see anyone in trouble
who shouldn't be, but at the sane tine she said she does
not want to see soneone get away wth sonmething they
shouldn't be getting away wth. She asked if there is any
m ddl e ground.

MR. BARNHILL replied yes, a tenporal aspect could be added
to the I|anguage. He said that Representative G uenberg's
concern is that soneone [commtted a crinme] 30 years ago,
so language could be inserted to say "had no actual
know edge or reasonable cause to believe that the person
commtting the violation had within the last X nunber of
years a crimnal record for violating this chapter, or
commtted other violations of this chapter.”™ He suggested
a nunber could be picked, and "that would conme hal f-way."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said if [the commttee] w shed to
do that it is fine, and he repeated that he is just trying
to avoid an injustice.

Number 2700

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON related that she would I|ike that
[ addi tion].

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 33- April 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG suggested an anmendnent to the
amendnent could be made, simlar to the alcohol statutes.
For a DU [driving under the influence] there is a | ook-
back provision of 10 years for a felony, he explained.
There is currently a bill that [has a |ook-back provision]
for 15 years for a m sdeneanor, he added. It would have to
be decided if forfeiture is a felony or a msdeneanor
first.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked if that is for driving under
t he infl uence.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that is correct.

CHAIR HAWKER asked M. Barnhill how he would craft [I| ook-
back | anguage] into this amendnent.

MR. BARNHI LL suggested inserting the words "within the |ast
X years".

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested five years.
REPRESENTATI VE W LSON suggested ten years.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG agreed [to ten years]. He
suggested that the |anguage say, "had, within the last 10
years, ". He said, in place of the entire [Amendnent 15],

insert on line 17, page 7, the phrase ", within the last 10
years,". He said he considers this a friendly anendnent.

MR. BARNHI LL pointed out that the |anguage also needed to
be inserted on page 7, line 4.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Anmendnent 15,
rewitten as previously stated. He asked if the I|anguage
needed to be inserted anywhere el se.

MR. BARNHI LL sai d he hopes not.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked that the drafter be all owed
to put [the |anguage] in anywhere else as needed, and he

cal | ed Anendnent 15 a conceptual anendnent.

Number 2954

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 34- April 2, 2004



CHAI R HAWKER restated Conceptual Anendnent 15. He asked
Representative Guenberg if a sidebar is required to
explain the tine certain in the last 10 years.

Number 3130

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG replied, "It is the intent that
the date of the previous conviction nust be earlier than
ten years before the date of this offense.”

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON wi thdrew her objection to the notion
to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 15.

CHAI R HAWKER, hearing no further objection, announced that
Conceptual Anmendnent 15, as rewitten, was adopted.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG noted that on page 5 of Version H, the
ternms "barter, or exchange" remain, when they should have
been renoved.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if that is an anmendnent.
CHAIR HAWKER replied that it is a question, so far.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that Legislative Legal
and Research Services look at it.

The commttee took an at-ease from9:15 a.m to 9:18 a.m

CHAI R HAWKER said that Legislative Legal and Research Services
was directed to renove the words "barter or exchange", which

still appear in Version H on page 5, lines 22, 25, and 26. He
said that has not been correctly done so it wll be requested
again. He pointed out that the directive was in Amendnent 4,

whi ch was adopted in a previous neeting.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, in view of all of the anmendnents
that have been offered, if the title needed to be expanded. He
explained that sonme of the content of the bill relates to
crimnal statutes, also. He wondered if the |anguage in the
title covers that and asked that the title be confornmed to the
changes that [the commi ttee] has made.

CHAI R HAWKER poi nted out that the |anguage regardi ng the tobacco

cessation fund would also need to be incorporated into the
title.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 35- April 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG enphasi zed, "W don't want it any
broader that what we've done. W do not want an Act relating to
cigarettes, or sonething like that."

CHAI R HAWKER echoed, "W would like a tight title conformancy."”
He said that the commttee would get a chance to review the
final commttee substitute before reporting the bill out of
comittee.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG al so pointed out that the nunbering of
t he amendnents nmay have to be changed.

Number 3804

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG expressed his thanks to Chair Hawker for
his indulgence in the various anmendnents. He brought to the
commttee's attention another anendnent concept which would
grandfather in, prohibit any further taxation on tobacco by any
political subdivisions, and reserve the rights for any further
taxation to the state. He pointed out that at |east three
municipalities have an additional tobacco products tax. He
opined it necessary to reserve certain areas of taxation for
different political subdivisions so that there is a coordination
of policy and inpacts on markets and businesses. He said he
would not appeal any current |ocal taxes, but opined that
[tobacco taxation] should be reserved for the state in the
future

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG replied that he hopes Representative
Rokeberg does not offer that anendnent because it could be
controversial, it is late in the session, and it mght involve
another referral to House Comunity and Regional Affairs
St andi ng Conmittee.

Nunber 4004

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON said that because [the state] has
elimnated revenue sharing to the nunicipalities, they are very
limted in the ways that they can raise revenue. She stated her
hesitation to take any options away fromcities.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG al so urged agai nst such an anendnent because
sone boroughs have "health powers"” and use a tobacco tax to
enhance revenues for that purpose. He said he would hate to
di scourage that. The taxing power by nunicipalities would be
wai ved by the people who make the decision on their own public,
which is a further check that is already in place, he opined.

HOUSE WM COW TTEE - 36- April 2, 2004



CHAIR HAWKER said he finds Representative Rokeberg's argunents
conpel l'i ng. He said he is troubled by the perspective that al
traditional revenue sources used by public entities should be
reserved and given priority by cities, leaving the state wth
very little. He also agreed it is wse not to incorporate the
anmendnent into this |egislation.

Number 4310

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH noved to report CSHB 538, Version 23-
GH2116\H, Kurtz, 4/1/04, as anended, out of conmttee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes.

REPRESENTATI VE  KOHRI NG  obj ect ed. He spoke of sever al
phi | osophi cal concerns with the bill. He said enforcenent of
existing laws should be |ooked at before raising taxes. He

suggested that there is evidence that increasing the tax on
tobacco in other states and countries resulted in nore
snuggl i ng. Canadi an studies reported a 40 percent increase of
youth snoking as a result of a cigarette tax increase, so the
tax was |lowered in order to keep snuggled cigarettes away from
kids, he related. He said he has not seen any conpelling
evidence that shows a decrease in youth snoking as a result of
the tax increase in Al aska. Price elasticity is another
concern, he stated. He opined that a $2 increase in tax wll
not lead to a decrease in snoking. He terned tobacco use an
i ndi vidual responsibility, and suggested that parents should be
the ones to discourage their children from snoki ng.

Number 4620

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves Weyhrauch, WI son,
Samuel s, Rokeberg, G uenberg, and Hawker voted in favor of
reporting CSHB 538, as anended, out of commttee.
Representatives Kohring, QOgg, and Moses voted against it.
Therefore, CSHB 538(W&M was reported out of the House Speci al
Comm ttee on Ways and Means by a vote of 6-3.

TAPE 04-22, SIDE B

CHAI R HAWKER made cl osi ng announcenents.

ADJ CQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Special Commttee on Ways and Means neeting was adjourned at
9:30 a.m

HOUSE WM COW TTEE -37- April 2, 2004



